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JOINT PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, AND CONSENT ORDER

The Missouri Ethics Commission (“MEC”), together with Bill Parmentier
(“Respondent”), collectively the “parties,” jointly stipulate and consent to action as set
forth here (the “agreement”).

Respondent acknowledges their right to have this agreement reviewed by counsel.
'Respondent further acknowledges they have received actual notice of the legal complaint
filed b\) the MEC in this case, have feviewed the contents of the legal complaint, and
submits to the jurisdiction of the Missouri Ethics Commission,

Respondent further acknowledges they are aware of the various ri_ghts and
privileges afforded by law, incl_uding but not limited to: the right to appear and be
represented by counsel at a hearing before the MEC; the right to have all allegations
against Respondent proven upon the record by competent and substantial evidence; the

right to cross-examine any witnesses appearing at the hearing against Respondent; the -




right to present evidence on Respondent’s behalf at the hearing; and the right to a
decision upon the record of the hearing. Being aware of these rights, Respondent
knowingly and voluntarily waives each one of these rights and freely enters into this
agreement and agrees to abide by its terms.

l.

The parties fnutually agree and stipulate, subject to adoption by the Missouri
Ethics Commission, the following shall constitute the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of
Law in this matter:

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Missouri Ethics Commission (MEC) is an agency of the State of Missouri
established pursuant to § 105.955, RSMo, in part for the purpose of enforcing provision_s
of Chapter 130, RSMo.

2. Pursuant to § 105.961, RSMo, the MEC's staff investiéated a complaint filed
with the Commission and reported the investigation findings to the Commission.

3. The Commission determined there were reasonable grounds to believe
violations of the law had occurred and authorized a hearing pursuant to § 105.961.3,
RSMo.

4. Respondent Bill Parmentier was a successful candidate for the Board of
Alderman in the City of Manchester in the April 2026 election.

5. The population of the City of Manchester is less than 100,000.




6. On February 15, 2025, Respondent purchased yard signs in support of his
candidacy.
7. Those yard signs included the following disclosure: “Paid for by Friends of

Bill Parmentier — Matt Forbis, Treasurer.”

8.

had accepted a total of $965 in contributions, and no single contributor had given more

than $100.

0.

following expenditures in support of his candidacy:

Prior to the purchase of the yard signs on February 15, 2026, Respondent

Between February 15, 2026, and February 25, 2026, Respondent made the

Daily
Date | Recipient Amount | Purpose Cumulative
_ Total
02/15 | YardSignPlus $310.64 | Yard Signs $310.64
02/17 | GotPrint $113.06 | Magnets
02/17 | GotPrint $141.13 | Postcards 5564.83
02/25 | Signs on the Cheap $157.78 | Banners §722.61
10.  On February 27, 2026, Respondent filed a Statement of Committee

Organization with the MEC, registering the following candidate committee: Friends of Bill

Parmentier. Matthew Forbis is the Treasurer.




11.  Pursuant to § 130.031.8, RSMo, printed matter relative to “any candidate
for public office, . .

conspicuous manner the person who paid for the printed matter with the words ‘Paid for

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

by’ followed by the proper identification of the sponsor pursuant to this section.”

12.  The specifics regarding “proper identification of the sponsor” are laid out in

the subsections of the statute as follows:

a.

In regard to any printed matter paid for by a candidate from the
candidate’s personal funds, it shall be sufficient identification to
print the first and last name by which the candidate is known.

In regard to any printed matter paid for by a committee, it shall
be sufficient identification to print the name of the committee as
required to be registered by subsection 5 of section 130.021 and
the name and title of the committee treasurer who was serving
when the printed matter was paid for.

In regard to any printed matter paid for by a corporation or other
business entity, labor organization, or any other organization not
defined to be a committee by subdivision (7) of section

130.011 and not organized especially for influencing one or more

elections, it shall be sufficient identification to print the name of
the entity, the name of the principal officer of the entity, by
whatever title known, and the mailing address of the entity, or if
the entity has no mailing address, the mailing address of the
principal officer. |

in regard to any printed matter paid for by an individual or
individuals, it shall be sufficient identification to print the name
of the individual or individuals and the respective mailing address
or addresses, except that if more than five individuals join in
paving for printed matter it shall be sufficient identification to
print the words “For a list of other sponsors contact:” followed by
the name and address of one such individual responsible for

shall on the face of the printed matter identify in a clear and



causing the matter to be printed, and the individual identified
shall maintain a record of the names and amounts paid by other
individuals and shall make such record available for review upon
the request of any person.

Section 130.031.8, RSMo.

13. A “committee” is defined as “a person or any combination of persons, who
accepts contributions or makes expenditures for the primary purpose or incidental
purpose of influencing or attempting to influence the action of voters for or against the
nomination or election to public office or one or more candidates[.]” Section 130.011(7),
RSMo.

14. However, the definition of a committee does not include “[a] person or
combination of persons, if neither the aggregate of expenditures made nor the aggregate
of contributions received during a calendar year exceeds five hundred dollars and if no
single contributor has contributed more than two hundred fifty dollars of such aggregate
contributions[.]” Section 130.011(7)a)a, RSMo,

15. A candidate for “municipal office in a city of one hundred thousand or less”
is excluded from forming and registering a committee with the MEC:

[11f the aggregate of contributions received or expenditures made by
the candidate and any other person with the candidate's knowledge
and consent in support of the person’s candidacy does not exceed
one thousand dollars and the aggregate of contributions from any
single contributor does not exceed three hundred twenty-five

dollars,

Section 130.016.6, RSMo.




16.  The timing of committee registration is addressed in § 130.021.5, RSMo:
The treasurer or deputy treasurer acting on behalf of any person or
organization or group of persons which is a committee by virtue of
the definitions of committee in section 130.011 and any candidate
who is not excluded from forming a committee in accordance with
the provisions of section 130.016shall file a statement of
organization with the appropriate officer within twenty days after
the person or organization becomes a committeel[.]

17.  There is probable cause to believe that Respondent violated the provisions
of § 130.031.8, RSMo, by printing, publishing, circulating, and distributing yard signs
relative to a candidate for public office that — at the time of printing, publishing,
circulating, and distributing — failed to correctly identify the sponsor of the printed matter
by naming a non-existent candidate committee at the time,

I,

Based on the foregoing, the parties mutually agree and stipulate, subject to
adoption by the Missouri Ethics Commission, the following shall constitute the Order
issued by the Missouri Ethics Commission in this matter:

CONSENT ORDER

The Missouri Ethics Commission finds probable cause to believe Respondent

violated § 130.031.8, RSMo and pursuant to § 105,961.4, RSMo, hereby ORDERS:
1. Respondent shall comply with all relevant sections of Chapter 130.
2. A fee is imposed against Respondent in the amount of $100.00,

pursuant to § 105.961.4(6), RSMo. The fee will be paid by check or
money order made payable to the Missouri Ethics Commission.




.

The parties understand that the MEC will maintain this agreement as an open
record of the Commission. This agreement does not bind the MEC or restrict the remedies
available concerning any violations not expressly detailed here, including any future
violations. Each party agrees to pay all their own fees and expenses incurred as a result
of this case, its litigation, and/or its disposition.

Respondent, together with their heirs, assigns, agents, representatives and
attorneys, do I.herebv waive, release, acquit and forever discharge the MEC, the
Commission’s respective members, employees, agents and attorneys including former
members, employees, agents and attorneys, of, or from any liability, claim, actions,
causes of action, fees, costs, expenses and compensation, including, but not Iimifed to,
any claim for attorney's fees and expenses, whether or not now known or contemplated,
including, but not limited to, any claims pursuant to § 536.087, RSMo, as amended, or any
claim arising under 42 U.S.C. § 1983, which now or in the future may be based upon, arise
out of, or relate to any of the matters raised in this case or its litigation or from the
negotiation or execution of this Joint Stipulation. The parties acknowledge that this
paragraph is severable from the remaining portions of this agreement in that it survives
in perpetuity even in the event that any court or administrative tribunal deems this

agreement or any portion thereof void or unenforceable.




This agreement shall become effective immediately upon (1) the signature of all
parties; (2) the adoption of the Joint Proposed Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law by the
Missouri Ethics Commission; and (3) the issuance of a Final Order by the Commission,

without any further action of the parties.

SO AGREED:

RESPONDENT PETITIONER

BILL PARMENTIER MISSOURI ETHICS COMMISSION
ill Parmentier Date

Attorney for Petitioner
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CONSENT ORDER

The Missouri Ethics Commission finds probable cause to believe Respondent
violated § 130.031.8, RSMo and pursuant to § 105.961.4, RSMo, hereby ORDERS:
1. Respondents shall comply with all relevant sections of Chapter 130.
2. Afeeisimposed against Respondent in the amount of $100.00, pursuant to

§ 105.961.4(6), RSMo. The fee will be paid by check or money order made
payable to the Missouri Ethics Commission.

SO ORDERED, this 25th day of June, 2026.

Julie Lie&b»t{ Chair
Missouri Ethics Commission i




